A. SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Tyrone Eaglespeaker was acquitted of burglary and rape in the

first degree but convicted of second degree rape after the State

requested that lesser offense instruction over his objection. The

acquittals are not terribly surprising; the complaining witness had

perjured herself before.
1

The State was not entitled to a lesser offense

instruction because such a conviction could be based only on the jury

disbelieving a portion of the State' s evidence; no affirmative evidence

supported that only the lesser offense occurred. 

The conviction should be reversed for a new trial on two

additional bases. The trial court admitted the complaining witness' s

call to 9 - 1 - 1 and subsequent 30- minute conversation with police as an

excited utterance although no evidence showed she remained

continuously under the stress of the alleged event a couple days later

when she made the call. Additionally, the court should not have

admitted Mr. Eaglespeaker' s statements to police made after he

requested an attorney but none was provided. 

1 Additional evidence was produced by the State after sentencing
showing that Julie Ricciardi had not only perjured herself before a grand jury on
a different topic but had previously made false rape allegations strikingly similar
to the instant allegations against Mr. Eaglespeaker. See Motion for Stay at 2 -3
Feb. 24, 2014). The jury was unaware of the prior false allegation evidence

because Mr. Eaglespeaker did not learn of it until after sentencing. See id. 
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B. ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR

1. The trial court erred in instructing the jury on the inferior

degree offense of rape in the second degree at the State' s request. 

2. The admission of Julie Ricciardi' s hearsay statements in her

call to 9 -1 - 1 as an excited utterance was an abuse of discretion. 

3. The trial court further abused its discretion by admitting Ms. 

Ricciardi' s statements to responding officers as excited utterances. 

4. Mr. Eaglespeaker' s Fifth Amendment and article I, section 9

rights to counsel were violated when the court admitted his statements

to police made after he requested an attorney. See CP 115 -16 ( CL VII, 

VII, X, XI, XIII, XIV). 

5. The trial court erred in concluding Mr. Eaglespeaker was not

in custody. CP 115 ( CL VII, CL X). 

6. The trial court erred in concluding the officers were not

interrogating Mr. Eaglespeaker because they were investigating a hang - 

up 9 -1 - 1 call and not rape allegations. CP 115 ( CL VIII). 

7. The trial court erred in concluding Mr. Eaglespeaker' s

request to speak with counsel was equivocal. CP 116 ( CL XII). 

8. The trial court erred in concluding the officers were not

interrogating Mr. Eaglespeaker later in the same discussion when
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Detective Garrity informed Mr. Eaglespeaker he wanted to talk about

another incident. CP 115 ( CL XI). 

9. The trial court' s oral rulings to the same effect are likewise

in error. See CP 116 ( CL XVII (incorporating oral rulings)). 

10. Cumulative error denied Mr. Eaglespeaker his due process

right to a fair trial. 

11. The trial court exceeded its authority by imposing

discretionary costs without determining Mr. Eaglespeaker' s financial

circumstances. 

C. ISSUES PERTAINING TO ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR

1. The moving party is entitled to a jury instruction on an

inferior degree offense when, looking at the evidence in the light most

favorable to the moving party, affirmative evidence demonstrates a

reasonable inference that only the inferior degree offense occurred. An

inferior degree instruction is not supportable if it depends upon the jury

simply disbelieving certain evidence. Did the trial court err when it

granted the State' s request for a second degree rape instruction over

Mr. Eaglespeaker' s objection where no affirmative evidence showed

forcible compulsion without felonious entry and the court and
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prosecutor recognized the jury could convict of second degree rape

only if it disbelieved the State' s evidence of felonious entry? 

2. Excited utterances are admissible, as a limited exception to

the hearsay prohibition, if the statement relates to a startling event or

condition and is made while the declarant remained continuously under

the stress of excitement caused by the event or condition. The

proponent of the statement bears the burden to prove admissibility. Did

the trial court abuse its discretion, requiring reversal of the conviction, 

by admitting the alleged victim' s out -of -court statements under the

excited utterance exception where they were made to a 9 -1 - 1 operator

and then responding police officers a couple days after the alleged

startling event, the State presented no evidence the declarant remained

continuously under the stress of the event, and the evidence eventually

adduced at trial shows she was not under continuous stress of the event

such that she did not have the opportunity to fabricate? 

3. Under the federal constitution, police may not continue to

question a suspect after he unequivocally invokes his right to counsel. 

The Court should interpret our state constitutional provision more

broadly to hold that an equivocal invocation may be followed up only

with clarifying questions regarding the equivocal invocation. 
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Statements obtained in violation of these constitutional rules may not

be admitted at trial. Did the trial court err in admitting Mr. 

Eaglespeaker' s statements to police obtained after he requested an

attorney, but was not provided one? 

4. Multiple errors may combine to deprive an accused person of

a fundamentally fair trial, in violation of the due process clauses of the

Washington and federal constitutions. In light of the cumulative effect

of the hearsay statements and Mr. Eaglespeaker' s statements to police, 

both of which were admitted erroneously, coupled with the improperly

provided lesser offense instruction, was Mr. Eaglespeaker denied a

fundamentally fair trial? 

5. The trial court is required to consider a defendant' s financial

circumstances and ability to pay before imposing discretionary costs. 

Did the trial court err by failing to do so here, requiring this Court to

strike the discretionary costs? 

D. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Julie Ricciardi has lied before. As she now admits, she testified

falsely under oath before a grand jury 4/ 22/ 13 RP 3 - 10; 5/ 14/ 13 RP

80 -82, 96 -97; CP 46 -57. On December 21, 2013 at approximately

11: 30 in the morning, she called 9 - 1 - 1 and, with excitement in her

5



voice, explained to the operator that a friend' s boyfriend came over " a

couple days ago" and " tried to rape" her. Exhibit 41. She named

Tyrone Eaglespeaker. Id. The 9 -1 - 1 operator ended the call. Id. 

Deputy Christian Lyle arrived at Ms. Ricciardi' s townhome to

investigate, with Detective Tim Garrity arriving a short time later. 

3/ 28/ 13 RP 6 -7, 38 -39; 5/ 13/ 13 RP 25 -28, 61.
2

They spoke with Ms. 

Ricciardi for at least 30 minutes; although she was excited when they

first arrived, she calmed down very quickly. 3/ 28/ 13 RP 7, 39; 5/ 13/ 13

RP 30 -31, 66. She told the officers that Mr. Eaglespeaker entered her

bedroom during the night, two nights earlier, and tried to have sex with

her. 3/ 28/ 13 RP 7; 5/ 13/ 13 RP 67 -69.
3

The officers photographed a

jacket, hat and credit card that Ms. Ricciardi said belonged to Mr. 

Eaglespeaker. 5/ 13/ 13 RP 68 -69. Ms. Ricciardi also claimed she had

text messages between her and Mr. Eaglespeaker from the past two

days —she purported to have both the sending and receiving cell phones

because she had lent Mr. Eaglespeaker her incarcerated husband' s

phone, which he had subsequently returned to her. 5/ 13/ 13 RP 71 -72; 

5/ 14/ 13 RP 28 -29, 30 -33, 67; Exhibits 12 -35. 

2 Her young children were also present. 5/ 13/ 13 RP 30. 
3 She eventually testified that Mr. Eaglespeaker digitally penetrated her. 

5/ 14/ 13 RP 54 -55. 
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Meanwhile, 9 -1 - 1 received a hang -up call from Mr. 

Eaglespeaker' s home. 3/ 28/ 13 RP 8. Deputies Lyle and Manning

responded to that address, knowing it was the residence of the suspect

Ms. Ricciardi had named. 3/ 28/ 13 RP 24 -25, 5/ 13/ 13 RP 96 -97. Other

officers followed. A caretaker, who is friends with Ms. Ricciardi, let

the police into the home after they knocked without answer. 3/ 28/ 13

RP 9, 11, 27; 5/ 13/ 13 RP 73 -76, 98 -100, 138, 141, 148. Sergeant

Johnston and Manning entered the home first, followed by Lyle and

Garrity. 3/ 28/ 13 RP 11, 26, 31 -32, 40 -41. 

Mr. Eaglespeaker exited his bedroom into the hallway to find

the officers already inside. 3/ 28/ 13 RP 28 -29. They went through the

home on a protective sweep. 3/ 28/ 13 RP 16, 27; 5/ 13/ 13 RP 100 -01. 

The officers handcuffed Mr. Eaglespeaker and detained him in the

hallway. 3/ 28/ 13 RP 28 -29. Deputy Manning questioned him about

calling 9 -1 - 1, while admittedly investigating any connection with the

alleged sexual assault. 3/ 28/ 13 RP 29 -31; see 3/ 28/ 13 RP 49. After

discussing the 9 - 1 - 1 call, Deputy Manning told Mr. Eaglespeaker that

Detective Garrity wanted to speak with him about " something he was

looking into "; Detective Garrity planned to get a statement from Mr. 

Eaglespeaker about Ms. Ricciardi' s allegations. 3/ 28/ 13 RP 32, 42. 
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Alone and in handcuffs, with four officers surrounding him, Mr. 

Eaglespeaker responded, " My father knows a lawyer and maybe I

should call my father." 3/ 28/ 13 RP 33, 42, 45. But the officers did not

let him speak with an attorney or inquire further into his request to do

so. Instead, Deputy Manning read Mr. Eaglespeaker his Miranda4

rights for the first time. 3/ 28/ 13 RP 33 -35. 

Mr. Eaglespeaker admitted he has gone to Ms. Ricciardi' s house

but denied intending to have sex with her or actually having sex with

her. 3/ 28/ 13 RP 14 - 15. He had heard that Ms. Ricciardi was telling

stories about him. 3/ 28/ 13 RP 43 -44. But, he related that he borrows

Ms. Ricciardi' s car, always knocks before entering, and though she had

asked that he take a shower with her, he had declined. 3/ 28/ 13 RP 46- 

47; see 5/ 14/ 13 RP 25 ( testimony of Ricciardi confirming Eaglespeaker

borrows her car). He had called 9 -1 - 1 to try to address those rumors

but then decided not to say anything and hung up. 3/ 28/ 13 RP 29 -30. 

Mr. Eaglespeaker was then formally placed under arrest, and he

again requested to speak with an attorney. 3/ 28/ 13 RP 16 -17, 49. Only

then did the officers' questioning stop. 3/ 28/ 13 RP 17. 

1966). 
4 Miranda v. Arizona, 384 U.S. 436, 86 S. Ct. 1602, 16 L. Ed. 2d 694
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While in the home, Detective Manning observed what looked

like drugs and drug paraphernalia, which were eventually seized. E.g., 

5/ 13/ 13 RP 42 -48. 

From jail, Mr. Eaglespeaker asked to speak to the police, and

told the responding officer that he had not raped Ms. Ricciardi and that

she had asked him to have sex with her, but he had declined. He said

they engaged in consensual digital penetration only. 3/ 28/ 13 RP 52 -56; 

5/ 14/ 13 RP 105 -09. 

The State charged Mr. Eaglespeaker with burglary and rape, 

both in the first degree. CP 1 - 3. After Mr. Eaglespeaker declined a

plea offer, the prosecutor added charges for possession of a controlled

substance and possession of drug paraphernalia. 2/28/ 13 RP 2; CP 11- 

14. 

After a Criminal Rule 3. 5 hearing, Mr. Eaglespeaker' s

statements to the police in his home and from jail were admitted at trial. 

3/ 28/ 13 RP 67 ( court excluded only Eaglespeaker' s statement that he

hung up the 9 -1 - 1 call because he did not want to speak to anyone); CP

9 -10, 108 -17; see, e.g., 5/ 13/ 13 RP 37 -39 ( officers' testimony at trial). 

The court also admitted Julie Ricciardi' s call to 9 -1 - 1 two days after the

alleged rape and break -in as well as her subsequent statements to the
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responding officers. 4/ 5/ 13 RP 4 -7; 5/ 14/ 13 RP 76 -79. The caretaker

friend of Ms. Ricciardi' s testified Ms. Ricciardi ( 1) showed her some of

the text messages Ms. Ricciardi showed police and ( 2) told her Mr. 

Eaglespeaker had broken in and tried to rape her. 5/ 13/ 13 RP 137 -56; 

see 5/ 14/ 13 RP 64 -66; 5/ 14/ 13 RP 83 -84. At trial, Mr. Eaglespeaker

did not contest the drug charges. 5/ 14/ 13 RP 149. 

Without presenting any affirmative evidence that Mr. 

Eaglespeaker raped Ms. Ricciardi but did not break into her bedroom to

do so, the State requested and, over objection, was granted jury

instructions on the lesser degree offense of second degree rape. 

5/ 14/ 13 RP 118 -20, 128 -29; CP 81 -83. 

The jury acquitted Mr. Eaglespeaker of burglary and rape in the

first degree. However, he was convicted of second degree rape and the

uncontested drug charges. CP 103 -07, 118 -36; CP _ ( Sub # 97).
5

5 The parties filed a motion to permit entry of the amended judgment and
sentence under RAP 7. 2( e). The amended judgment reflects a reduced offender

score and correspondingly reduced minimum term sentence. Because the
amended judgment has not yet been added to the clerk' s papers and because it is

identical all material respects, this brief cites primarily to the original judgment
and sentence. 

A supplemental designation of clerk' s papers has been filed asking the
trial court to transfer documents indicated by subfolder number to this Court. 
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E. ARGUMENT

1. Because there was no affirmative evidence supporting
only the inferior degree offense, the trial court erred
in instructing the jury on rape in the second degree at
the State' s request. 

An accused may only be convicted of those offenses charged in

the information or those offenses which are either lesser included

offenses or inferior degrees of the charged offense. U.S. Const. amend. 

VI; Const. art. I, § 22; Schmuck v. United States, 489 U.S. 705, 717 -18, 

109 S. Ct. 2091, 103 L. Ed. 734 ( 1989); State v. Tamalini, 134 Wn.2d

725, 731, 953 P.2d 450 ( 1998) ( citing State v. Irizarry, 111 Wn.2d 591, 

592, 763 P. 2d 432 ( 1998); RCW 10. 61. 003). 

An instruction on a lesser offense is warranted where: ( 1) each

element of the lesser offense must necessarily be proved to establish the

greater offense as charged ( legal prong); and ( 2) the evidence in the

case supports an inference that the lesser offense was committed

factual prong). State v. Berlin, 133 Wn.2d 541, 548, 947 P.2d 700

1997); State v. Workman, 90 Wn.2d 443, 447 -48, 584 P. 2d 382 ( 1978). 

An instruction for an inferior degree is proper only where: 

1) the statutes for both the charged offense and the

proposed inferior degree offense " proscribe but one
offense;" ( 2) the information charges an offense that is

divided into degrees, and the proposed offense is an
inferior degree of the charged offense; and ( 3) there is
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evidence that the defendant committed only inferior
offense. 

State v. Fernandez- Medina, 141 Wn.2d 448, 454, 6 P. 3d 1150 ( 2000) 

emphasis added) ( quoting State v. Peterson, 133 Wn.2d 885, 891, 948

P.2d 381 ( 1997)). 

The factual inference required to satisfy the factual prong is the

same for inferior degree and lesser included offense instructions. Id. at

455. First, in applying the factual prong, a court must view the

supporting evidence in the light most favorable to the party requesting

the instruction. Id. at 455 -56. Here, that is the State. Second, 

affirmative evidence must support the inference that only the lesser

offense was committed. Id. at 456. An instruction on a lesser offense

is not proper simply because the jury might disbelieve a portion of the

State' s case. Id. 

This factual prong was at issue in State v. Brown, 127 Wn.2d

749, 754 -56, 903 P.2d 459 ( 1995). There, the State charged rape in the

first degree alleging forcible compulsion plus the use or threatening the

use of a deadly weapon. 127 Wn.2d at 754. At the close of evidence, 

the State requested an instruction on the lesser offense of rape in the

second degree. Id. at 753. Our Supreme Court held the trial court erred

in granting the instruction over the defendant' s objection. Id. at 756. 
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As Mr. Brown argued, the alleged victim and others testified Mr. 

Brown raped her while holding a gun to her head and Mr. Brown' s

testimony indicated the two had consensual sex. Id. at 754. Thus, 

affirmative evidence showed either rape in the first degree, as charged, 

or consensual sex ( and no crime). But no affirmative evidence showed . 

Mr. Brown might have raped the alleged victim without holding a gun. 

Id. at 754 -55. As the Court noted, "` affirmative evidence' requires

something more than the possibility that the jury could disbelieve some

of the State' s evidence." Id. at 755 ( citing State v. Fowler, 114 Wn.2d

59, 67, 785 P.2d 808 ( 1990)). " Impeachment evidence that serves only

to discredit the State' s witness but does not itself establish that only the

lesser crime was committed cannot satisfy the factual prong." Id. The

State failed to satisfy the factual prong to support the provision of an

inferior degree instruction; because the trial court nonetheless provided

such an instruction reversal was required. Id. at 756. 

This case is indistinguishable from Brown. Like in Brown, here

there was evidence of forcible compulsion after felonious entry as well

as consensual sex. The State presented no affirmative evidence that

Mr. Eaglespeaker did not break into Ms. Ricciardi' s home. Instead, as

the court and the prosecutor recognized, to find Mr. Eaglespeaker

13



guilty of second degree rape, the jury would have to disbelieve the

felonious nature of his entry into the home. 5/ 14/ 13 RP 119, 120, 130, 

134 -35. As the parties agreed in their respective closing arguments, the

case came down to credibility, particularly that of Julie Ricciardi. 

5/ 14/ 13 RP 139, 149, 164. But the factual prong requires the

requesting party to show " something more than the possibility that the

jury could disbelieve some of the State' s evidence." Brown, 127

Wn.2d at 755. 

Because the State failed to satisfy that burden here, the trial

court erred in providing the State' s requested lesser offense instruction. 

Id. at 756. Like in Brown, the resulting second degree rape conviction

must be reversed. Id. 

2. Because the 9 -1 - 1 call was placed two days after

the alleged incident without any showing Ms. 
Ricciardi remained continuously under the stress
of the incident, Ms. Ricciardi' s statements to the
9 -1 - 1 operator and then to police should not have
been admitted as excited utterances. 

Before trial, the State moved to admit as an excited utterance the

recording of Julie Ricciardi' s two -day delayed call to 9 - 1 - 1, and Mr. 

Eaglespeaker objected. 4/ 5/ 13 RP 4. Because significant time had

passed between the alleged event and the call and because the State

could not show Ms. Ricciardi remained continuously under the stress of
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the event at the time of the call, Mr. Eaglespeaker argued the recording

did not meet the limited exception for excited utterances, which

depends upon a lack of opportunity to fabricate. 4/ 5/ 13 RP 4 -6.
6

The

court listened to the first 20 seconds of the recording, and ruled: " All

right, I'm going to grant the state' s motion here to offer the 9 -1 - 1 call. 

The rules on excited utterance' s [ sic] are considerably more relaxed in

the State of Washington ... and there are enough indicia in [the first 20

seconds of] the call to make a foundational case for the proposition that

it is an excited utterance." 4/ 15/ 13 RP 6 -7. The court misapplied the

limited hearsay exception and did not address the State' s burden to

show that Ms. Ricciardi had remained continuously under the stress of

the purported rape since it had occurred. 

Based on its ruling admitting the 9 -1 - 1 call, the court also

admitted Ms. Ricciardi' s statement to responding police officers, who

questioned her for over 30 minutes. 

6 Mr. Eaglespeaker renewed his objection when the evidence was
presented at trial. 5/ 14/ 13 RP 76 -78. 
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a. The evidence rules provide a restrictive exception to the

hearsay prohibition for statements made while the declarant
remains continuously under the stress of the startling event
being discussed. 

Hearsay is " a statement, other than one made by the declarant

while testifying at trial or hearing, offered in evidence to prove the truth

of the matter asserted." ER 801( c). Subject to narrow exceptions, 

hearsay is presumptively inadmissible. ER 802.

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