NO. 44998-6-II

COURT OF APPEALS OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON

DIVISION II

---

STATE OF WASHINGTON,

Respondent,

v.

TYRONE EAGLESPEAKER,

Appellant.

---

APPEAL FROM THE SUPERIOR COURT FOR SKAMANIA  
COUNTY

HONORABLE JUDGE BRIAN P. ALTMAN

---

**BRIEF OF RESPONDENT**

---

ADAM NATHANIEL KICK  
Skamania County Prosecuting Attorney  
Attorney for Respondent

Skamania County Prosecuting Attorney  
P.O. Box 790  
240 N.W. Vancouver Ave.  
Stevenson, Washington 98648

**

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

The record in this case does contain affirmative evidence that Eaglespeaker could have committed only the lesser included crime of rape in the second degree, and that he did not enter the

residence of Ms. Ricciardi feloniously. First, in applying the factual prong, the court must view the supporting evidence in the light most favorable to the party requesting the instruction. State v. Fernandez-Medina, 141 Wn.2d 448, 6 P.3d 1150 (2000). So if the State presented evidence from which a jury could infer that Eaglespeaker may have had permission to enter the residence, or was let into the residence, but later forcibly raped Ms. Ricciardi, then the trial court properly instructed the jury on the lesser included offense of rape in the second degree.

During the conference regarding the instructions, the trial court found, and Mr. Eaglespeaker agreed that the jury might find that he was invited or had an open invitation to enter the residence. RP (May 14, 2013) 119. While Eaglespeaker apparently objected to the lesser included instruction, the reason for the objection was clearly the possibility of an inconsistent verdict where the jury might find that Eaglespeaker committed the crime of burglary first degree and rape second degree, finding felonious entry in one count and not finding it in the other. CP 103 – 107.

In fact the State did present evidence that Mr. Eaglespeaker may have had permission to enter the residence. The extended text conversation between Eaglespeaker and Ricciardi that

occurred the evening prior to the rape gave the impression that Ricciardi was expecting Eaglespeaker to come to her residence. That same text conversation suggests that Eaglespeaker was interested in a sexual relationship with Ricciardi, but that she was not. The jury certainly could have, and likely did interpret that conversation as giving Eaglespeaker the implied authority to enter the residence. RP (May 14, 2013) 36 – 44. In particular the following part of the exchange suggests the inference that Eaglespeaker had permission to come to the house, but not for sex [RP (May 14, 2013) 36-45]:

Eaglespeaker: "I'm waking up, U up, sorry?"  
And then  
"I just woke up. I'll be over in a few."  
"I need to shower, WBU?" [What about you?]

Ricciardi: "Yeah, but I always wait until my kids are asleep."

Eaglespeaker: "Okay, well if you want me to come over then let me know."  
Then a while later,  
"You up still?"

Ricciardi: "Yep, kids just fell asleep."

This text exchange happened after Eaglespeaker had stopped by twice before, that evening, during an argument between Ricciardi and her boyfriend, and was started by Ricciardi with the opening text: "Why are you ignoring me?" RP (May 14, 2013) 37. The jury could have inferred from that evidence/testimony that Ricciardi wanted Eaglespeaker to come to her house, but did not want to have sex with him, as much of the other texts involved an argument between Ricciardi and Eaglespeaker about whether the only reason he wanted to spend time with her was for sex. RP (May 14, 2013) 37-45.

There is significant other testimony that Eaglespeaker and Ricciardi had a friendly relationship, that she was used to him coming to her residence, and that she trusted him enough to loan him her vehicle. Ricciardi testified that she did not recall if she locked her door before going to sleep the night of the rape. RP (May 14, 2013) 93 - 94. Eaglespeaker told Deputy Hepner that Ricciardi let him into the house and wanted to take a shower with him. RP (May 14, 2013) 107 – 109.

Because the trial court correctly found that the State had presented affirmative evidence from which the jury could have

inferred that Eaglespeaker did not enter the residence feloniously, and so could have committed just the crime of rape in the second degree, and not rape in the first degree, it properly instructed the jury on the lesser included crime of rape in the second degree.

**3. THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ABUSE ITS DISCRETION BY ALLOWING IN EVIDENCE, UNDER THE "EXCITED UTTERANCE" EXCEPTION TO THE HEARSAY RULE, A RECORDED 9-1-1 CALL MADE BY THE VICTIM MS. RICIARDI.**

**A. SINCE THE COMPLAINING WITNESS MS. RICIARDI TESTIFIED AT TRIAL, THERE WAS NO CONSTITUTIONAL VIOLATION OF EAGLESPEAKER'S RIGHT TO CONFRONT WITNESSES.**

A criminal defendant has a right "to be confronted with the witnesses against him," U.S. Const., Amendment VI. However, this amendment does not bar hearsay testimonial statements made by a witness who in fact testifies at trial. See State v. Crawford, 541 U.S. 36, 59, 124 S. Ct. 1354, 158 L. Ed. 2d 177 (2004) ("[W]hen the declarant appears for cross-examination at trial, the Confrontation Clause places no constraints at all on the use of his prior testimonial statements.).

This is true at minimum where the declarant testifies as to the relevant evidence which will be the case here. See dicta in

State v. Williams, 137 Wn. App. 736, 745, 154 P.3d 322 (2007), quoting State v. Rohrich, 132 Wn. 2d 472, 475, 939 P.2d 697 (1997) ("The opportunity to cross-examine means more than affording the defendant the opportunity to hail the witness to court for examination. It requires the State to elicit the damaging testimony from the witness so the defendant may cross-examine if he so chooses....").

Since in this case, the complaining witness, Julie Riciardi, testified for the State at trial, RP (May 14, 2013) 22 – 81, and was cross-examined, RP (May 14, 2013) 81 – 103, there is no Constitutional bar to the admission of her hearsay statements.

**B. THE 9-1-1 CALL FROM JULIE RICIARDI WAS PROPERLY ADMITTED UNDER THE "EXCITED UTTERANCE" EXCEPTION TO THE HEARSAY RULE.**

The morning of 12/21/12, Julie Riciardi called 9-1-1 to request help after she'd been raped the day before. The jury was allowed to hear the recording of this phone call, RP (May 14, 2013) 76 – 79. Eaglespeaker argues that the trial court abused its discretion in admitting the 9-1-1 call Julie Riciardi made the day after the rape because she did not remain continuously under the stress of the rape. Brief of Appellant at 14.



However, a 9-1-1 call is admissible under ER 803(a)(2), which provides a hearsay exception for:

[a] statement relating to a startling event or condition made while the declarant was under the stress of excitement caused by the event or condition.

ER 803(a)(2) permits statements "made while under the influence of external physical shock" to be admissible if made "before the declarant has time to calm down enough to make a calculated statement based on self interest." State v. Hardy, 133 Wn.2d 701, 714, 946 P.2d 1175 (1997).

The three requirements to satisfy the "excited utterance" exception are:

First, a startling event or condition must have occurred. Second, the statement must have been made while the declarant was under the stress of excitement caused by the event or condition. Third, the statement related to the startling event or condition.

State v. Chapin, 118 Wn.2d 681, 686, 826 P.2d 194 (1992). The basic premise of the rule is that the speaker has no opportunity to lie before making the utterance. State v. Briscoeray, 95 Wn. App. 167, 172, 974 P.2d 912 (1999), review denied, 139 Wn.2d 1011, 994 P.2d 848 (1999).

The passage of time between the startling event and the declarant's statement is only one factor to be considered in determining whether the statement is an excited utterance. State v. Strauss, 119 Wn.2d 401, 416-417, 832 P.2d 78 (1992), citing State v. Woodward, 32 Wn. App. 204, 206-207, 646 P.2d 135 (1982), review denied, 97 Wn. 2d 1034 (1982), superceded by statute as stated in State v. Ramirez, 46 Wn. App. 223, 230-231, 730 P.2d 98 (1986).

The passage of time alone is not dispositive. State v. Thomas, 46 Wn. App. 280, 284, 730 P.2d 117 (1986), aff'd., 110 Wn.2d 859, 757 P.2d 512 (1988). The key is

whether the statement was made while the declarant was still under the influence of the event to the extent that his statement could not be the result of fabrication, intervening actions, or the exercise of choice or judgment.

Johnston v. Ohs, 76 Wn.2d 398, 406, 457 P.2d 194 (1969).

Washington courts have allowed statements made hours after the startling events.<sup>1</sup>

---

<sup>1</sup>See, for example, State v. Flett, 40 Wn. App. 277, 287, 699 P.2d 774 (1985)(statements made 7 hours after the event admissible "based on the continuing stress experiences and exhibited by the victim"); State v. Fleming, 27 Wn. App. 952, 955-956, 621 P.2d 779 (1980), review denied, 95 Wn.2d 1013 (1981), disapproved on other grounds, State v. Osborn, 59 Wn. App. 1, 7, 795 P.2d 1174 (1990)(three to four hour delay).

In Strauss, a statement made to a police officer three and one half hours after a sexual assault was upheld as an excited utterance, 119 Wn.2d at 416-417. There the court noted the victim was crying and upset at the time she gave the statement and appeared to be in a state of shock. Id. at 416.

In Thomas, a statement made six to seven hours after a sexual assault was upheld as an excited utterance, 46 Wn. App. at 283-285. The Thomas court relied on the fact the victim was upset and crying, and her responses were not the product of leading questions. Id. at 285. The Thomas court also noted that "[w]hile several hours elapsed prior to the call, several of them were spent sleeping in the home of the alleged perpetrator." Id.

In order to qualify as an excited utterance, the startling event or occurrence need not immediately precede the statement. "Although the statement must be made while the declarant is still under the influence of the event, an excited utterance need not be contemporaneous to the event." State v. Robinson, 44 Wn. App. 611, 615-16, 722 P.2d 1379 (1986), review denied, 107 Wn.2d 1009 (1986), citing State v. Doe, 105 Wn.2d 889, 893, 719 P.2d 554 (1986). Timing is a relevant factor, however. State v. Chapin, 118 Wn.2d 681, 826 P.2d 194 (1992).

Responses to questions may be admissible. Burmeister v. State Farm Ins. Co., 92 Wn. App. 359, 369, 966 P.2d 921 (1998), citing Robbins v. Greene, 43 Wn. 2d 315, 321, 261 P.2d 83 (1953). In fact, declarations have been found to be admissible even when there is intervening conversation with others. In State v. Majors, statements made to a police officer 20 minutes after an assault were properly admitted as excited utterances even though the victim had previously spoken to other witnesses and to the 911 operator, 82 Wn. App. 843, 848-849, 919 P.2d 1258 (1996), review denied, 130 Wn.2d 1024, 930 P.2d 1230 (1997). The court noted that the ruling was based on victim's "'visibly shaken' demeanor, her youth, and the relatively small amount of time between the incident and the declaration." Id. at 848.

Here, while a little more than 24 hours had elapsed between the rape and the 9-1-1 call to law enforcement,<sup>2</sup> Julie Riciardi spent the intervening time terrified that Eaglespeaker would return and

---

<sup>2</sup> In United States v. Napier, 518 F.2d 316, 317-318 (9<sup>th</sup> Cir. Or. 1975), cert. denied, 423 U.S. 895, 96 S. Ct. 196, 46 L. Ed. 2d 128 (1975), the United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit (Oregon) upheld the admission of an excited utterance made when the declarant viewed a photograph of her assailant approximately eight weeks after the assault and cried out, "He killed me, he killed me." The Court ruled in that case, however, that the required startling event was the display of the photograph. Id. at 318. In State v. Ramirez-Estevez, 164 Wn. App. 284, 292, 263 P.3d 1257 (2011), review denied, 173 Wn.2d 1030, 274 P.3d 374 (2012), the Washington Court of Appeals rejected a comparison to Napier

assault her again. In fact, Eaglespeaker did return to Ricciardi's home 4-5 hours after the rape, which shocked her, as she initially didn't believe that he'd return. RP (May 14, 2013) 57 – 61. Later, Eaglespeaker continued to make threats against Ricciardi. RP (May 14, 2013) 70 – 74. Evidence that Ricciardi continued to be under the influence of the rape was that she asked others to stay with her to protect her from Eaglespeaker. RP (May 14, 2013) 75. Her behavior was consistent with someone who continued to be under the influence of the startling event of the rape.

When Ricciardi learned that Eaglespeaker would likely be staying at his place near her in North Bonneville, she became even more agitated and emotional. Ruanna Johnson, who had repeated contact with Ricciardi between the time of the rape and the 9-1-1 call described her as "frantic" and "hysterical" prior to making the call. RP (May 13, 2013) 143 - 148. Her demeanor on the 9-1-1 call corroborated the fact that she was still under the influence of the event, in that she was hard to understand. RP (May 14, 2013) 76 – 79. When the trial court listened to Ricciardi's demeanor on the 9-1-1 call it found that the foundational requirements had been met. RP (April 5, 2013) 5 – 6. Deputy Christian Lyle contacted Ricciardi

---

with respect to a two-year delay, stating, "The two-year delay here . . . eclipses

soon after the 9-1-1 call and also described her as hysterical and emotional, and was crying so much that he couldn't understand her at first. RP (May 13, 2013) 65 – 66.

Because there is ample evidence that Ricciardi continued under the influence of the startling event of the rape, even after the 9-1-1 call, her statements to law enforcement on that call therefore meets the foundational requirements for an excited utterance.

**C. THE ADMISSION OF EXCITED UTTERANCES IS NOT REVERSED UNLESS THE TRIAL COURT ABUSES ITS DISCRETION.**

The admission of "excited utterances" will not be reversed unless the trial court has abused its discretion. Strauss, 119 Wn.2d at 417 (1992). A trial court abuses its discretion when it acts on untenable grounds or for untenable reasons or when its decision is manifestly unreasonable. State ex rel. Carroll v. Junker, 79 Wn.2d 12, 26, 482 P.2d 775 (1971), superceded on other grounds, Seattle Times Co. v. County of Benton, 99 Wn.2d 251, 263, 661 P.2d 964 (1983).

Since the trial court had tenable grounds to admit Ricciardi's 9-1-1 call, and its decision was not manifestly unreasonable, its

---

the eight-week delay in Napier.

ruling allowing the evidence to be admitted should not be disturbed on appeal.

The statement here is distinguishable from the one rejected as an excited utterance in State v. Brown, 127 Wn.2d 749, 757-759, 903 P.2d 459 (1995), cited in Brief of Appellant at 21-22, because in Brown, the trial court admitted a 911 call, part of which the declarant admitted during her testimony was false, id. at 753. No such thing happened here. In fact, Eaglespeaker misrepresents the trial testimony when he suggests Ricciardi lied in the intervening period between the rape and the 9-1-1 call. In fact Ricciardi's merely attempted to keep from Eaglespeaker the fact that she'd disclosed to others that he'd raped her. That's self-preservation, not a lie. [Eaglespeaker inexplicably cites RP (May 14, 2013) 68 – 70, 88, 90 for the proposition that Ricciardi lied.] For these reasons, the trial court did not abuse its discretion in admitting the 9-1-1 call.

**D. EVEN IF THE THE VICTIM'S 9-1-1 CALL WAS IMPROPERLY ADMITTED, ANY ERROR WAS HARMLESS.**

Even if the trial court did wrongfully admit the 9-1-1 call of Julie Ricciardi, the error was harmless. "An error in admitting

evidence that does not result in prejudice to the defendant is not grounds for reversal." State v. Bourgeois, 133 Wn.2d 389, 403, 945 P.2d 1120 (1997), overruled on other grounds, State v. Sledge, 83 Wn. App. 639, 922 P.2d 832 (1996) [citation omitted].

Non-Constitutional violations of an evidentiary rule are "not prejudicial unless, within reasonable probabilities, the outcome of the trial would have been materially affected had the error not occurred," Id., quoting State v. Tharp, 96 Wn.2d 591, 599, 637 P.2d 961 (1981).

The improper admission of evidence constitutes harmless error if the evidence is of minor significance in reference to the overall, overwhelming evidence as a whole.

Id. [citation omitted]

Here, Julie Ricciardi testified in far more detail than what was on included in the 9-1-1 call, so the admission of the 9-1-1 call could not have materially affected the guilty verdict. Similarly, in Majors, 82 Wn. App. at 848-849, the Court of Appeals did not find an abuse of discretion in the admission of an excited utterance partially because the statement was "cumulative of other testimony," including that of the declarant.<sup>3</sup> The admission of the 9-

---

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